
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Gravesham Joint 
Transportation Board

Members of the Gravesham Joint Transportation Board of Gravesham Borough Council are 
summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Civic Centre, Gravesend, Kent on Wednesday, 
14 March 2018 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be 
transacted.

S Kilkie
Assistant Director (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public 

5. Arriva Bus Routes in Gravesham - General Discussion 

6. Gravesham Highway Works Programme 2017/18 (Pages 9 - 18)

7. Petitions from residents at the JTB (KCC Petition Scheme) (Pages 19 - 24)

8. Petition - Speed Limits and Traffic Calming in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree 
Lane - Request from Cllr Robin Theobald 

(Pages 25 - 72)

9. Parking in Pitfield Drive (junction A227), Meopham - request from KCC Cllr 
Bryan Sweetland 

(Pages 73 - 74)

Public Document Pack



10.New traffic system following the Rathmore Road development in 
Gravesend - General Discussion - request from Cllr Leslie Hills 

11.Any Other Business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

12.Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Members

Cllr Lesley Boycott (Chair)
County Councillor Alan Michael Ridgers (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Colin Caller
Leslie Hills
Peter Scollard
Robin Theobald
Tan Dhesi (KCC)
Diane Marsh (KCC)
Lauren Sullivan (KCC)
Bryan Sweetland (KCC)

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Gravesham Joint Transportation Committee 

Wednesday, 06 December 2017                                     7.30pm

Present:

Cllr Lesley Boycott (Chair)
County Councillor Alan Michael Ridgers (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Colin Caller
Robin Theobald
Jenny Wallace 
Diane Marsh (KCC) 
Lauren Sullivan (KCC)
Bryan Sweetland (KCC)

Thomas Williams Schemes Project Manager (KCC)  
Mike Payton District Manager – Gravesham (KCC)
Nikola Floodgate Schemes Planning and Delivery Manager (KCC) 
Earl Bourner Project Operations Manager (KCC)  
Nick May Parking Manager
Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant (Minutes)  

Linda Carnall Higham Parish Council 
Sheila Buchanan Meopham Parish Council 
John Bugg Shorne Parish Council 
Pat Banks Vigo Parish Council 

59. Apologies 

Apologies of absence were received were Cllr Tan Dhesi (KCC), Cllr Peter Scollard and Cllr 
Leslie Hills. 

60. Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2017 were signed by the Chair.

61. Declarations of Interests 

No declarations of interest were made.    

62. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public 

None. 

63. Gravesham Highways Works Programme 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 6.12.2017

2

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) presented a report to the Board updating 
Members on the identified schemes approved for construction in 2017/18. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) directed Members attention to the improvement 
scheme on page nine and ten of the report; 

 All Machine Resurfacing works have been completed in the listed roads  

 Footway Improvement – Lower Road and Albion Road works have been pushed 
back to commence on the 08 January 2018 

 Micro Surfacing – The following roads will all be programmed to take place in March 
2018: 

- Prospect Place 
- The Street 
- Jeskins Road 
- Singlewell Road 
- Gywnn Road  

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) also informed the Board that phase one of the 
Street Lighting Led Switchover had been completed with phase two on major roads well 
underway; phase three for ornate lanterns is due to start next year. 

Cllr Theobald raised an issue in his Shorne Parish of a cantilever arm needing to be 
replaced; the District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) asked that it be reported through KCC at 
which point it can be looked to be replaced. 

After a question was raised regarding the completion of Garrick Street and Rathmore Road, 
Cllr Wallace stated that she had been contacted by KCC who advised that the works were 
supposed to be completed by the 08 December. 

The Board raised concern with the increasing traffic cutting through Stone Street due to the 
amount of traffic lights that have been installed and asked that a stop line be put it; the 
District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) asked that the problem and request be emailed to him 
for further inspection. 

The Board noted the information contained within the report. 

64. Local Winter Service Plan 

The Board were presented with a report outlining the arrangements that have been made 
between Kent County Council and Gravesham Borough Council to provide a local winter 
service in the event of an operational snow alert in the borough/district. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that he had a copy of the plan with him if 
any Members wished to see it after the meeting but informed Members that the plan was the 
same as previous years. 

The Project Operations Manager (KCC) explained to Members that all salt bags in the area 
have been filled up in preparation a cold winter and jumbo one tonne bags have been 
offered to Parish Councils which will last them though winter and can still be ordered. 

Page 4



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 6.12.2017

3

With regard to bags being given to individual wards, it would be possible but only the smaller 
25kg bags as long as they can be stored somewhere where they won’t get wet. 

The Board noted the information contained within the report. 

65. Petition to reduce the speed limit on Valley Drive due to the concerns of                    
local people - Request from KCC Cllr Diane Marsh 

The Board received a petition that was requested and presented by KCC Cllr Diane Marsh 
which had been signed by 85 residents. It was an attempt to reduce the speed limit on Valley 
Drive at the junction of Dobson Road from 40mph to 30mph due to the concerns of local 
people for the safety of people crossing, elderly residents and nearby school children.  

KCC Cllr Marsh gave an impassioned address to the Board in which she pleaded for the 
safety of her residents to be considered and for the Board to endorse sending a response 
back to KCC for a reduction in speed along the designated road.  KCC Cllr Marsh also 
mentioned that she was disappointed to learn that one of her residents had contacted KCC 
Cllr Matthew Balfour who rejected her calls for traffic calming measures in Valley Drive as 
there was no evidence of them being required. 

The Schemes Project Manager (KCC) advised that KCC would stand by the response that 
KCC Cllr Matthew Balfour had given as money cannot be funnelled into projects where there 
isn’t proof of problems evidenced through crash data. However he advised that funding from 
external parties such as KCC Cllr Marsh’s member grant could be directed into traffic 
calming measures such as interactive speed signs and speed surveys; that is the only 
current way measures can be taken forward. 

Following a debate the Board concluded that the speed limit could be reduced to 30mph, a 
risk assessment should have been carried out for the road and interactive speed signs would 
be very beneficial to make drivers aware of the speed they are going. The Board also 
acknowledged that it wasn’t in the remit of the Police and although they seemed willing to 
place restrictions for safety there were no resources to be able to enforce any of them. 

Resolved that the Board recommend to KCC that a speed restriction be put in place on 
Valley Drive at the junction of Dobson close from 40mhp to 30mph and work be undertaken 
with KCC Cllr Diane Marsh to place other traffic calming measures such as interactive speed 
signs through combined Member grants.

66. Petition to Alter the Existing Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) Time 
Restrictions For St James's Avenue, Lennox Avenue and Norman's 
Close - Request from Cllr Jenny Wallace 

The Board received a petition that was requested and presented by Cllr Jenny Wallace 
which had been signed by 61 residents. The petition was conceived to alter the existing CPZ 
time restrictions in place for St James Avenue, Norman Close and Lennox Avenue as officer 
workers mainly from Joynes House are parking their cars there all day leaving no room for 
residents to park their own cars. The current time restrictions allow the workers to come out 
and move their cars at lunch and just park them back at the end of the time period; a new 
time restriction is needed of a longer interval or two separate intervals to deter people 
leaving their cars there. 

Page 5



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 6.12.2017

4

The Parking Manager agreed with the points raised by Cllr Wallace as his own enforcement 
officers have reported seeing people eating lunches in cars and driving them around the 
block when they have arrived. Due to the current CPZ there isn’t a lot enforcement can do as 
they circumnavigate it but a review is currently underway of town centre CPZ’s and the 
parking order which gives legal powers to Parking to enforce is being consolidated.  
However the review has taken up the years budgets and moving forward nothing will be able 
to be change until the next financial year at which point residents can be consulted to see 
what change the desire and different forms of restrictions can be investigated. 

Cllr Caller expressed his support for amending the restrictions to help the residents but 
warned the Board pay heed to the shoppers that only want to stay for short term parking to 
just pop to shops; longer restriction times could deter shoppers and impact upon the shops 
in the area. 

The Board noted the petition and were encouraged by the Parking Managers positive 
response for the next financial year.  

67. Trosley Park/Waterlow Parking Restrictions - Request from Vigo Parish 
Council 

The Board received a request presented by Parish Cllr Pat Banks, the Chair of Vigo Parish 
Council to implement parking restrictions on the Waterlow Road bend outside of Trosley 
Country Park as ever since the parking fees were increased in the Trosley Park car park 
more cars have bene parking there. The cars, as seen in the photos park all over the bend 
and adjacent side roads which is very dangerous for other cars and buses who are trying to 
traverse it. 

Parish Cllr Pat Banks realised that removal of the car park charges would be disregarded so 
asked that double yellow lines be implemented on the bend in an attempt to deter drivers 
from parking there. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised he looked at the accident record and 
there was no evidence there for increased parking measures and also if there were any GBC 
did not have the resources to enforce them. Dialogue between the Country Park and the 
Parish should be opened to discuss costs. 

The Chair raised the point that the Country Park should be made aware that the Board has 
expressed their feelings on the matter and it would also be beneficial to be able to look at the 
rental income from the park to see if they are any better off since they increased the fares. 

KCC Cllr Bryan Sweetland expressed his frustration as the Gravesham Joint Transportation 
Board being an advisory body of which regularly send their advice to Kent County Council 
and are inevitably ignored or told that there is nothing to be done. 

Cllr Colin Caller proffered the revolutionary idea that KCC should pass over a certain 
percentage of their highways funds over to the Joint Transportation Board for the Board to 
prioritise and spend on local works that are considered important. It would help get things 
changed in the Borough as well as take any responsibility off of KCC as the responsibility 
would lie with GBC to enact the changes that were required. 

The Board agreed with that sentiment and the Chair proposed that Cllr Colin Caller and KCC 
Cllr Bryan Sweetland work together to come up with a statement, for funds beings 

Page 6



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 6.12.2017

5

transferred over to the power of JTB to bring to the next meeting of JTB in March 2018 for 
Board approval, to be submitted to KCC.  

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 8:21pm. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



To:             Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 

By:             KCC Highways, Transportation & Waste

Date: 14th March 2018

Subject:  Highway Works Programme 2017/18

Classification: Information Only 

Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for 
construction in 2017/18

1. Introduction 

This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been programmed 
for delivery in 2017/18

Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes – see Appendix A

Drainage Repairs & Improvements – see Appendix B

Street Lighting – see Appendix C

Transportation and Safety Schemes – see Appendix D
 Casualty Reduction Measures
 Externally funded schemes
 Local Growth Fund 

Developer Funded Works – see Appendix E

Bridge Works – see Appendix F

Traffic Systems – see Appendix G

Combined Member Fund – see Appendix H

Conclusion 

1. This report is for Members information.

Page 9 Agenda Item 6



Contact Officers:

The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 418181
 
Carol Valentine Highway Manager West Kent
Earl Bourner Gravesham District Manager
Alan Casson                    Senior Asset Manager
Katie Moreton     Drainage & Structures Asset Manager
Sue Kinsella Street Light Asset Manager
Toby Butler Traffic & Network Solutions Asset Manager
Jamie Hare Development Agreements Manager
Emma Green Schemes Programme Manager

Page 10



Appendix A – Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes

The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not possible to carry out 
these works on the planned dates, new dates will be arranged and the residents will be informed 
by a letter drop to their homes.

Machine Resurfacing – Contact Officer Mr Byron Lovell

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status

Cobham Street Gravesend Full length Programmed 5th  
March 2018

Singlewell Road Gravesend Ridgeway Ave to Hever 
Court Road

Programmed 23rd 
April 2018

A227 Wrotham 
Road Roundabout Gravesend

Wrotham Road 
Roundabout junction with 

Coldharbour Lane

Programmed 6th 
May 2018

Footway Improvement - Contact Officer Mr Neil Tree

Lower Road Gravesend

From the junction with 
Lower Road to limit of 

Industrial units (Seacon).
(Footway Reconstruction).

Works 
commenced and 

on-going.

Court Lodge Shorne Entire length.
(Footway Protection). Completed

Tanyard Hill Shorne

From the junction with The 
Street to o/s the property 

“Inis Coillte”.
(Footway Protection).

Completed

Albion Road Gravesend Entire length
(Footway Protection). Completed

Surface Treatments - Contact Officer Mr Jonathan Dean

Micro Surfacing

Harden Road Northfleet Whole Length Completed

Cherrywood Drive Northfleet From junction of Bader 
Walk to Mulberry Road Completed

Abbey Road Gravesend
From junction Old Road 

East to junction Rochester 
Road

Completed

Page 11



Glen View Gravesend Whole Length Completed

Prospect Place Gravesend Whole Length 
Programmed for 
the 12th March 
2018 for 2 days

A227 Wrotham 
Road Gravesend M2 interchange to No. 301 

Istead Rise. Completed

Hardy Avenue Gravesend
Milroy Ave to No. 1 Hardy 

Avenue (Excluding junction 
with Snelling Avenue)

Completed

Thong Lane Shorne Inn on the Lane to Harts Hill 
Nurseries Completed

The Street Shorne
From junction with Cob 

Drive to junction with Court 
Lodge

Programmed for 
the 12th March 
2018 for 1 day

Jeskyns Road Cobham
From Henhurst Road to 

Road over Pedestrian path 
(Tunnel)

Programmed for 
the 15th March 
2018 for 1 day

Singlewell Road Gravesend From Old Road West to 
Cross Lane West Postponed

Gywnn Road Northfleet Junction with Hall Road to 
junction with Water Dales

Programmed for 
the 13th March 
2018 for 2 days

Surface Dressing

Waterlow Road Vigo Whole Length Completed

Dean Lane Meopham
From junction with Harvel 

Street to junction 
Strawberry Hill

Completed

Chandlers Road Meopham
Full length between 

Priestwood Road to Dean 
lane Completed

Strawberry Hill Meopham Full length between Dean 
Lane and Leywood Road Completed

Batts Road Cobham Gold Street to Henley Road Completed

Page 12



Appendix B – Drainage

Drainage Works – Contact Officer Katie Moreton

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status

No drainage works planned over £5000

Appendix C – Street Lighting

Structural testing of KCC owned street lights has identified the following as requiring 
replacement. A status of complete identifies that the column replacement has been carried out. 
Programme dates are identified for those still requiring replacement. 

Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella

Road Name Parish Description of Works Status

Cambell Rd Gravesham Replacement of 8 Street Lights

Works 
programmed 
for 
completion 
by March 
2018

Westhill Rd Gravesham Replacement of 1 Street Light

Works 
programmed 
for 
completion 
by March 
2018

Grove Rd Gravesham Replacement of 1 Street Light Works 
completed

Dover Rd East Gravesham Replacement of 1 Street Light

Works 
programmed 
for 
completion 
by March 
2018

Perry St Gravesham Replacement of 1 Street Light

Works 
programmed 
for 
completion 
by March 
2018

Page 13



Appendix D – Transportation and Safety Schemes

Casualty Reduction Measures

The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within Gravesham borough, in 
order to meet Kent County Council’s (KCC) strategic targets (for example, addressing traffic 
congestion or improving road safety).  Casualty reduction measures have been identified to 
address a known history of personal injury crashes. Current status correct as of 9th November 
2018.

Local Transport Plan funded schemes – Contact officer Thomas Williams
Road Name Description of works Current status
Casualty reduction measures (reactive) – 2017/18

London Road 
junction with 
Burch Road

Installation of junction warning sign. Completed on site. 

Darnley Road, 
Gravesend

Investigation of modifications of 
Traffic orders regarding the one ways 
on Arthur Street, Cobham Street & its 
junction with Old Road West.

On Hold pending traffic outcomes of 
Rathmore Road Major Project.

LTP Schemes 17/18
London Road, 
Northfleet

Following an investigation  the works 
will entail: Pedestrian Refuge Island 
and corresponding signage and lining 
adjustments. 

Completed on site. 

Harmer Street, 
Gravesend

Design and improvements to Harmer 
Street junction with the Terrace to aid 
National Cycle route 1 users whilst 
improving safety to vehicles using the 
one way system and The Terrace.

Completed on site.

Eternally Funded Schemes

The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within the borough of 
Gravesham funded by external corporations whilst still meeting KCC’s strategic targets with the 
road network. 

Externally Funded Schemes – Contact Officer Tom Williams Scheme Project Manager

Road Name Description of 
works

Source of funding Status

Granby Road, 
Northfleet

General 
Improvements to the 
area and Granby 
road encompassing 
rejuvenation of 
footways and cycle 
facilities. 

Ebbsfleet 
Development 
Corporation.

Works in progress. Due for 
completion 11/02/2018.  

Page 14



Local Growth Fund

Local Growth Fund programme update for the Gravesham Borough.

The Department for Transport (DfT) added £100m to the Local Growth Fund (LGF) pot in order to 
fund Local Sustainable Transport Fund Style schemes.  KCC subsequently submitted four Local 
Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) capital bids 1) East Kent – A network for Growth, 2) Kent 
Thameside – Integrated door-to-door journeys and 3) West Kent – Tackling Congestion.  The 
fourth was for Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration, which included a highway improvements 
scheme in the Lower High Street as well as additional LSTF style measures.  The objective of all 
of the capital bids is to boost economic growth by decreasing carbon emissions and reducing 
congestion.

The Kent Thameside, West Kent and Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration bids were all 
successful. The schemes aim to:

 improve access to employment and services
 reduce the need to travel by the private car
 enhance pedestrian, cycle and public transport facilities
 improve sustainable transport connections

The following schemes have been submitted as part of the successful Kent Thameside LSTF this 
financial year.

Scheme Status
Gravesend Wayfinding Signs Installation of the monoliths and finger posts are now 

complete.  Phase 2 is now underway and is due to 
complete by the end of March 2018. 

Gravesend cycle hub Cycle Hub construction is complete.  

Cycle Hub to Cyclopark cycle route – a 
signed route between the cycle hub and 
Cyclopark which is suitable for less 
confident cyclists.

Consultants have been commissioned to provide 
updated designs and costs to fit with the budget. 
Internal consultation has taken place and the 
external consultation was launched on 29th January 
and will close on 4th March.
www.kent.gov.uk/gravesendcycleroute   

Appendix E – Developer Funded Works

Developer Funded Works (Section 278 Agreement Works) – Contact Officer Aaron Divall

Scheme Name Mastergov 
File Ref No

Parish Description of Works Current Status

Wimbourne 
House, Truro 

Road, 
Gravesend

GR003005 Gravesend

Extension of footpath 
from Bellmouth for 

approximately 50m in 
direction of Valley Drive

In Maintenance

Page 15

http://www.kent.gov.uk/gravesendcycleroute


BP Tollgate 
Station, 

Wrotham Road, 
Northfleet

GR003009 Northfleet
Creation of new access 

to serve BP Tollgate 
Station

New drawings 
received, awaiting 
technical approval 
and planning

Ebbsfleet United 
FC GR003013 Northfleet Footway works for new 

entrance

Minor works 
complete, finalising 
main s278 works

Lion Roundabout GR003017 Gravesend

Realignment of 
roundabout, removal of 
planters, upgrading of 

pelican crossing to 
toucan and instillation 

of joint 
footway/cycleway 

around roundabout

Technical approval – 
awaiting legal 

agreement

Springhead 
Road junction 
with A2260

GR003020
Gravesend

Swanscombe
Ebbsfleet

New Access onto 
A2260 from Springhead

Awaiting Technical 
approval and in 

discussions with Legal 
/ EDC

Allens Mead GR003024 Gravesend Tie in from Dalefield 
Way development In Maintenance

Fenners Marsh GR003028 Gravesend Tie in to private access In Maintenance

Alfred Road GR003018 Gravesend
New footway 

crossovers for new 
development

Footway excavated 
during building works, 

awaiting 
reinstatement

Denton Wharf, 
Mark Lane GR003027 Gravesend New Surface for Port 

authority entrance In Maintenance

Appendix F – Bridge Works

Bridge Works – Contact Officer Katie Moreton

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status

No works planned

Page 16



Appendix G – Traffic Systems

There is a programme of scheduled maintenance to refurbish life expired traffic signal equipment across 
the county based upon age and fault history. The delivery of these schemes is dependent upon school 
terms and holiday periods; local residents, businesses and schools will be informed verbally and by a 
letter drop of the exact dates when known. 

Traffic Systems - Contact Officer: Toby Butler
 

Location Description of Works Current Status

A226 New Road Bath Street, Gravesend Refurbishment of traffic 
signal controlled junction 

Rescheduled to 
January 2018
 for 4 weeks

Appendix H - Combined Member Grant program update 
  
Member Highway Fund programme update for the Gravesham District.

The following schemes are those, which have been approved for funding by both the relevant 
Member and by Roger Wilkins, Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste. The list only 
includes schemes, which are 

 in design 
 at consultation stage
 about to be programmed
 Recently completed on site. 

The list is up to date as of 09/02/2018

The details given below are for highway projects only.  This report does not detail 
 Contributions Members have made to other groups such as parish councils
 highway studies
 traffic/ non-motorised user surveys funded by Members.  

More information on the schemes listed below can be found by contacting the District Manager 
for the Gravesham District Earl Bourner. 

Bryan Sweetland
Details of Scheme Status

16-MHF-GR-6 Parking Restrictions, Meopham 
Design, Consultation and Installation of double yellow lines at Biddenden Way/ 
Crockenhall Way and Istead Rise/ Broakside Road. 

Works 
awaiting 

completion. 

Installation of Unsuitable for HGV Signs
Signs to be situated on Watling Road and its roundabout with Halfpence Lane & 
Scalers Hill junction with Scotland Lane.

Works 
ordered 
awaiting 

completion. 

Page 17



Diane Marsh 
Details of Scheme Status

Installation of school warning sign
Signs to be situated on A226 near St Johns school.

Works 
ordered 
awaiting 

completion.  

 

1.1 Legal Implications

1.1.1 Not applicable.

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.2.1 Not applicable.

1.3 Risk Assessment

1.3.1 Not applicable.

Contacts: Carol Valentine / Earl Bourner 03000 418181

Page 18



 
Petition Scheme 

 
1. What are the guidelines for submitting a Petition? 
 
(a) Petitions submitted to the County Council must include: 

 
(i) a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the 

petition. It should state what action the petitioners wish the 
County Council to take. 

(ii) the name and address of the petition organiser (this is the 
person we will contact to explain how we will respond to the 
petition), and  

(iii) the name and address and signature of any person supporting 
the petition (petitions can be signed by people who live, work or 
study in the County Council’s area). 

 
(b) Petitions which are considered to be vexatious*, abusive or otherwise 

inappropriate will not be accepted and you will be contacted to explain 
the reasons for this. 

 
(c) * In deciding if a petition is vexatious, the starting point will be the 

guidance used for the Freedom of Information Act: 
 

“Deciding whether a request is vexatious is a flexible balancing 
exercise, taking into account all the circumstances of the case. There is 
no rigid test or definition, and it will often be easy to recognise. The key 
question is whether the request is likely to cause distress, disruption or 
irritation, without any proper or justified cause" 

 
(d) In the period immediately before an election or referendum we may 

need to deal with your petition differently – if this is the case we will 
explain the reasons and discuss the revised timescale which will apply. 

 
(e) Petitions for a County Council debate should be submitted to the Head 

of Democratic Services at least 14 days before the next available 
meeting. The Chairman shall have discretion to accept petitions on 
urgent matters after that deadline following consultation with the 
political Group Leaders. 

 
(f) If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above, the County 

Council may decide not to do anything further with it. In that case, we 
will write to you to explain the reasons. 

 
2. What will the County Council do when it receives my petition? 
 
(a) An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 5 

working days of receiving the petition. It will let them know what we 
plan to do with the petition and when they can expect to hear from us 
again. It will also be published on our website. 

Page 19 Agenda Item 7



 
(b) If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may 

confirm that we have already taken the action requested and the 
petition will be closed. If the petition has enough signatures to trigger a 
County Council debate, then the acknowledgment will confirm this and 
tell you when and where the meeting will take place. If the petition 
needs more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take. 

 
(c) If the petition applies to a planning application, is a statutory petition 

(for example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or 
on a matter where there is already an existing right of appeal, such as 
council tax banding and non-domestic rates, other procedures apply.  

 
(d) To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the 

petitions we receive the details of all the petitions submitted to us will 
be published on our website, except in cases where this would be 
inappropriate. Whenever possible we will also publish all 
correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details will be 
removed). When you sign an e-petition you can elect to receive this 
information by email. We will not send you anything which is not 
relevant to the e-petition you have signed, unless you choose to 
receive other emails from us.  

 
3. How will the County Council respond to petitions? 
 
(a) The County Council will tell you what it intends to do with the petition 

within 20 working days of receipt of the paper petition or the close of an 
e-petition.   

 
(b) Each Petition that does not have the required number of signatures to 

trigger a debate will receive a written response from the appropriate 
Cabinet Member(s), which will set out their views on the petition and 
what action, if any, will be taken. 

 
(c) If your petition is about something over which the County Council has 

no direct control (for example the local railway or hospital) we will 
consider making representations on behalf of the community to the 
relevant body. The County Council works with a large number of local 
partners and where possible will work with these partners to respond to 
your petition. If we are not able to do this for any reason (for example if 
what the petition calls for conflicts with County Council policy), then we 
will set out the reasons for this to you. You can find more information 
on the services for which the County Council is responsible here. 

 
(d) If your petition is about something that a different council is responsible 

for, or for which we have joint responsibility, we will give consideration 
to what the best method is for responding to it. This might consist of 
simply forwarding the petition to the other council for them to respond 
to or comment on, but could involve other steps. In any event we will 
always notify you of the action we have taken. 

Page 20

http://www.kent.gov.uk/environment_and_planning/planning_in_kent/planning_applications.aspx
http://www.kent.gov.uk/your_council/council_services.aspx


  
 
 
4. Petition debates 
 
(a) If your petition relates to a County Council matter that relates to a 

specific District Council area and contains at least 1,000 signatures it 
will be debated at them most appropriate local meeting (usually a Local 
Board, Locality Board or Joint Transportation Board). 

 
(b) If your petition relates to a County Council matter and contains 

between 2,500 and 9,999 signatures, it will be debated at the 
appropriate Cabinet Committee. 

 
(c) If your petition relates to a County Council matter and contains at least 

10,000 signatures, it will be debated by the County Council.  
 
 
5.  County Council and Cabinet Committee debates 
 
(a) The County Council or relevant Cabinet Committee will endeavour to 

consider the petition at its next meeting, although on some occasions 
this may not be possible and consideration will then take place at the 
following meeting. No more than two separate petition debates will take 
place at any County Council or Cabinet Committee meeting.  

 
(b) The lead petitioner, or their named representative will be invited to 

attend the meeting and to submit a written statement of no more than 
500 words, which should be sent to the Democratic Services Unit 
(preferably by e-mail) to arrive by 5:00pm on the Monday of the week 
before the County Council or Cabinet Committee meeting. The relevant 
Directorate should also submit a brief position statement/briefing note 
by the same deadline; 

 
(c) At the meeting of the County Council or Cabinet Committee the petition 

organiser, or their named representative, will be given five minutes to 
present the petition at the meeting and the petition will then be 
discussed by Elected Members. The relevant Cabinet Member will be 
invited to speak for up to five minutes on the Petition. The total time for 
a petition debate will be 45 minutes.  If the lead petitioner, or their 
named representative, does not attend the County Council or Cabinet 
Committee meeting then the petition will be considered in their 
absence.   

 
(d) The County Council or Cabinet Committee will decide how to respond 

to the petition at this meeting. They may decide to take the action the 
petition requests, not to take the action requested for reasons put 
forward in the debate, or to commission further investigation into the 
matter, for example by the relevant Cabinet Member or committee.  

 

Page 21



(e) Where the issue is one on which the County Council’s Executive is 
required to make the final decision, the County Council or Cabinet 
Committee will decide whether to make recommendations to inform 
that decision. 

 
(f) The petition organiser will receive written confirmation of the Council’s 

or Cabinet Committee’s decision, which will also be published on our 
website. 

 
(g) The County Council or Cabinet Committee will not debate a petition on 

the same decision/issue as one debated within the previous six 
months. 

 
5. E-petitions 
 
(a) The Council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted 

through our website. E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as 
paper petitions (as set out above). The petition organiser will need to 
provide us with their name, postal address and email address. You will 
also need to decide how long you would like your petition to be open 
for signatures. Most petitions remain open for a maximum of 3 months, 
but a shorter or longer timescale can be agreed with the petition 
organiser if appropriate. 

 
(b) When you create an e-petition, it may take up to 10 working days 

before it is published online. This is because we have to check that the 
content of your petition is suitable before it is made available for 
signature. If we feel we cannot publish your petition for some reason, 
we will contact you within this time to explain. You will be able to 
change and resubmit your petition if you wish. If you do not do this 
within 10 working days, a summary of the petition and the reason why 
it has not been accepted will be published under the ‘rejected petitions’ 
section of the website. When an e-petition has closed for signature, it 
will automatically follow the same process as a paper petition (as set 
out above) 

 
(c) In the same way as a paper petition, you will receive an 

acknowledgement within 5 working days of the close of the e-petition. 
A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone 
who has signed the e-petition and elected to receive this information. 
The acknowledgment and response will also be published on this 
website. 

 
7. How do I ‘sign’ an e-petition? 
 
You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature on the 
Council’s website.  When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide 
your name, your postcode and a valid email address. When you have 
submitted this information you will be sent an email to the email address you 
have provided. This email will include a link which you must click on in order 

Page 22

http://democracy.kent.gov.uk/mgepetitionlistdisplay.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.kent.gov.uk/mgepetitionlistdisplay.aspx?bcr=1


to confirm the email address is valid. Once this step is complete your 
‘signature’ will be added to the petition. People visiting the e-petition will be 
able to see your name in the list of those who have signed it but your contact 
details will not be visible. 
 
8. What can I do if I feel my petition has not been dealt with 
properly? 
 
(a) If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition 

organiser has the right to request that the steps that the County 
Council has taken in response to your petition are reviewed.  All 
reviews will be considered by the Selection and Member Services 
Committee.   

 
(b) It is helpful to everyone, and can improve the prospects for a review if 

the petition organiser gives a short explanation of the reasons why the 
County Council’s response is not considered to be adequate.  

 
(c) The Selection and Member Services Committee will endeavour to 

consider your request at its next meeting, although on some occasions 
this may not be possible and consideration will take place at the 
following meeting.  

 
(d) Should the Selection and Member Services Committee determine that 

the County Council has not dealt with your petition adequately, it may 
use any of its powers to deal with the matter. These powers include 
instigating an investigation, making recommendations to the County 
Council’s Executive and arranging for the matter to be considered at a 
meeting of the full County Council.  

 
(e) Once the appeal has been considered, the petition organiser will be 

informed of the results within 5 working days. The results of the review 
will also be published on our website 

 
Approved by the County Council on 13 September 2012 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Margaux 
Woodlands Lane 

Shorne 
Gravesend 

Kent 
DA12 3HH 

Robin Theobald 
Gravesham Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Windmill Street 
Gravesend 
DA12 1AU 

2nd January 2018 
 

Dear Robin 

Subject:  Speed Limits and Traffic Calming in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane 

I am writing to you in your capacity as Borough Councillor for Shorne, to seek your support in pressing 
for traffic calming and extended 30 mph speed limits in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane. 

Local residents have contacted myself and Pauline Clifton, as their local parish council representatives, 
to request support and assistance in this matter. 

Crash Map shows that there have been 6 recorded injury-accidents in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree 
Lane in the 3 years up to 30 June 2017.  In addition to this, you will no doubt be aware that there are 
numerous other minor, unrecorded accidents and near misses along this stretch of road.  Tragically, 
on 24th October 2017 an incident occurred in Pear Tree Lane which resulted in the death of a cyclist. 

Residents have gathered over 200 signatures to a petition calling on Kent County Council to extend 
the 30 mph speed limit and to install appropriate traffic calming (see attached letter and attachments).  
The volume of signatures obtained is a clear indication of the level of support and the strength of 
feeling for these measures, primarily from residents in the area, and is one which cannot be ignored.   

Having visited many properties in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane and participated in Speedwatch 
sessions on this stretch of road, I am entirely sympathetic to their requests.  As you know, Pauline lives 
in The Ridgeway and leads the local Speedwatch volunteers, and she is very supportive of their 
requests. We have therefore agreed to represent the petitioners, and to keep them informed of 
progress.  Bryan Sweetland has also agreed to support this request.   

Pauline and I would therefore be grateful if you would take the trouble to read through the attached 
letter to KCC Highways, and to actively support this request in your capacity as Borough Councillor.   

Separately, I shall be sending a note to the Parish Council to request that the Council takes this matter 
up with Kent County Council. 

Thank you for your attention. 

Yours sincerely, 

Bob Lane 

Page 25 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

From Residents of Shorne 

Near Gravesend, Kent. 

 

2nd January 2018 

 

Kent County Council Highways 

Invicta House,  

Maidstone,  

ME14 1XX 

 

 

Dear Sir or Madam 

Speed Limits and Traffic Calming in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane, Shorne 

Residents from Shorne near Gravesend have gathered 228 signatures to petition Kent County Council 

to extend the 30 mph speed limit in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane, Shorne, and to install traffic 

calming measures throughout the extended 30 mph zone, in an effort to make the road safer for 

residents, pedestrians, and other road users.   

Specifically, we are calling for: 

1. The 30 mph speed limit in The Ridgeway to be extended by at least 100 metres towards Brewers 

Road, so that traffic has the opportunity to slow down before entering the main residential area.   

Ideally, the 30 mph speed limit should be extended by 250 metres, to its junction with Brewers 

Road and Woodlands Lane.  This would slow traffic passing the entrance to Puckle Hill, and make 

it safer for the pedestrians, runners, cyclists, and horse riders who frequently use this area. 

2. The 30 mph limit in Pear Tree Lane to be extended to its junction with the A226 Gravesend Road. 

3. A physical carriageway restriction in The Ridgeway, immediately before entering the residential 

area from the direction of Brewers Road, which requires traffic entering the village to slow down 

and give way to traffic travelling in the opposite direction.  This restriction could be similar to the 

type installed in Thong and other villages in Kent. 

4.  “Please drive carefully through the village” signs to be installed at each end of the extended 30 

mph zone, with “Thank you for driving carefully” signs for traffic leaving the 30 mph zone. 

5. “30” circles printed at regular intervals on the carriageway throughout the extended 30 mph 

zone, to act as a reminder to traffic travelling through The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane. 

‘Crash Map’ has recorded 6 injury-accidents in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane in the 3 years up to 
30 June 2017, involving 12 vehicles and 8 casualties (see attachment 1).  It is well known locally that 
there are numerous other minor, unrecorded accidents and near misses along this stretch of road.  
Tragically, a fatal accident involving a cyclist occurred in Pear Tree Lane on 24th October 2017.  
Something must be done to reduce the frequency and severity of accidents on this stretch of road. 

It is important to understand that Brewers Road, The Ridgeway, and Pear Tree Lane are in effect one 

single 3 km road linking the A2 to the south-west, and the A226 at Higham to the north-east.  Brewers 

Road and the first 250 metres of The Ridgeway is subject to a 40 mph limit, which drops to 30mph 

Page 27



2 
 

immediately upon entering the village of Shorne Ridgeway.  The 30 mph limit continues through The 

Ridgeway and into Pear Tree Lane for approximately 600m, where the 30 mph speed limit ends and 

the national speed limit applies for the remaining 1200m until Pear Tree Lane meets the A226 at traffic 

lights.  The existing speed limits are shown in attachment 2. 

The Ridgeway 

The Ridgeway is the 600 metre section of the road, consisting of approximately 50 residential cottages 

and houses, linking Brewers Road to Pear Tree Lane. The Ridgeway encompasses the full length of 

Chestnut Green conservation area.  Approximately 500 metres of The Ridgeway has no pavement on 

either side of the carriageway, and a number of cottages have front doors which open directly onto 

the highway.  In addition to this, Shorne Recreation Ground is accessed from The Ridgeway. 

The first 250 metres of The Ridgeway from Brewers Road is subject to a 40 mph speed limit which 

extends right up to the very edge of the main residential area before it drops to 30 mph, which means 

that many vehicles are still exceeding the speed limit when they enter the 30mph zone.  3 years ago, 

an interactive “30mph” sign was installed at the beginning of the 30mph zone in an attempt to calm 

traffic entering the residential area, but this has met with limited success.  ‘Speedwatch’ exercises 

indicate that approximately 12% to 13% (1 in 8) of vehicles using The Ridgeway still exceed the speed 

limit by more than 10% plus 2mph, as well as many others which exceed the speed limit by a lesser 

amount. 

Pear Tree Lane 

Pear Tree Lane is a continuation of The Ridgeway, from ‘The See Ho’ public house at the junction of 

Bowesden Lane to where it meets the A226 at traffic lights.  From The Ridgeway, the first 580 metres 

of Pear Tree Lane, which consists of a public house, a farm entrance, and 27 residential properties, is 

subject to a 30mph limit.  However, immediately beyond “The Willows”, the 30 mph ends and the 

national speed limit applies for the remaining 1.2km, until it reaches a traffic-light controlled junction 

with the A226, which incidentally is subject to a 40 mph limit. 

For much of this 1.2km, Pear Tree Lane is narrow, with blind bends and hills.  There are 28 properties 

along this stretch, many with concealed entrances.  There are no footways – pedestrians have to walk 

in the road, with few refuges.  Non-recorded accidents, incidents, and near misses occur frequently.  

It is scarcely conceivable that vehicles are legally permitted to travel at up to 60 mph along this stretch 

of the road. 

Summary of Safety Hazards 

 The Ridgeway is in a conservation area, with approximately 50 residential properties. 

 500 metres of The Ridgeway has no footways, with properties opening directly onto the road. 

 At least 1 in 8 vehicles exceed the 30 mph speed limit in The Ridgeway by more than 5 mph. 

 Pear Tree Lane has approximately 55 residential properties, many with concealed entrances. 

 There are no footways on either side of the road, and few refuges. 

 Approximately 1.2km of Pear Tree Lane is subject to the national speed limit (up to 60 mph). 

 6 injury RTAs have been recorded in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane in the past 3 years. 

 There are numerous unrecorded minor accidents and near misses. 

 A fatal RTA involving a cyclist occurred in Pear Tree Lane on 24th October 2017. 

Page 28



3 
 

In addition to hazards faced by pedestrians, cyclists, and horse-riders, many residents in The Ridgeway 

and Pear Tree Lane are concerned about the difficulties and hazards experienced when pulling out of 

their driveways into the fast-moving traffic.  These concerns are shared by residents of Shorne who 

have to pull out of Bowesden Lane and Tanyard Hill to join The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane.  Longer 

term residents feel that not only have traffic volumes increased over the past decade, but also the 

proportion of vehicles speeding as well as their actual speeds.  It is only a matter of time before there 

will be another serious accident on this stretch of road. 

Our local Parish Council representatives are supportive of extending the 30 mph limits and 

implementing traffic calming measures, and have agreed to act as our representatives in this matter.  

Our Kent County Council representative Bryan Sweetland has also expressed his support. 

We therefore formally request Kent County Council to act on our request as a matter of priority.  The 

traffic calming safety measures itemised above are the minimum which we believe to be necessary.  

We appreciate that Kent County Council’s Highways Department has its own experienced experts who 

may be able to improve on these proposals.  We would therefore welcome the opportunity to discuss 

these with you and with KCC’s experts. 

Nevertheless, the safety hazards are very real, and it is essential that funds are found to carry out the 
necessary traffic calming and speed restrictions.   The volume of signatures obtained is a clear 
indication of the level of support and the strength of feeling for these measures, and is one which 
cannot be ignored. 

We look forward to hearing from you in due course. 

Yours sincerely 

Barbara Millatt 
Barbara Millatt 

Furzebank, Pear Tree Lane, Shorne, Gravesend, DA12 3JX. 

On behalf of Richard Moore, Carol Chevis, Ruth Hensman, Nick Lance, and over 200 residents of 

Shorne. 

Cc: Bob Lane (Parish Councillor) 

 Pauline Clifton (Parish Councillor) 

 

Attachment 1: Crash Map Data 

Attachment 2: Existing Speed Limits 

Attachment 3: Traffic Calming and Extended 30 mph Limit 

Attachment 4: Example of Give Way Carriageway Restriction 

Attachment 5: Petition 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



ATTACHMENT 1: CRASH MAP - THE RIDGEWAY AND PEAR TREE LANE 3 YEAR PIC REPORT 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 31



ATTACHMENT 1: CRASH MAP - THE RIDGEWAY AND PEAR TREE LANE 3 YEAR PIC REPORT 

2 
   

P
age 32



ATTACHMENT 1: CRASH MAP - THE RIDGEWAY AND PEAR TREE LANE 3 YEAR PIC REPORT 

3 
 

 

 

 

P
age 33



ATTACHMENT 1: CRASH MAP - THE RIDGEWAY AND PEAR TREE LANE 3 YEAR PIC REPORT 

4 
 

 

 

 

P
age 34



ATTACHMENT 2: EXISTING SPEED LIMITS IN THE RIDGEWAY AND PEAR TREE LANE, SHORNE 

1 
 

 

P
age 35



ATTACHMENT 2: EXISTING SPEED LIMITS IN THE RIDGEWAY AND PEAR TREE LANE, SHORNE 

2 
 

 

P
age 36



ATTACHMENT 2: EXISTING SPEED LIMITS IN THE RIDGEWAY AND PEAR TREE LANE, SHORNE 

3 
 

 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ATTACHMENT 3: PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING AND EXTENDED 30 MPH SPEED LIMITS 

 
 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ATTACHMENT 4: EXAMPLE OF GIVE WAY CARRIAGEWAY RESTRICTION 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 43



P
age 44



P
age 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Parking in Pitfield Drive (junction A227), Meopham

Page 73 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Gravesham Highway Works Programme 2017/18
	7 Petitions from residents at the JTB (KCC Petition Scheme)
	Petition Scheme

	8 Petition - Speed Limits and Traffic Calming in The Ridgeway and Pear Tree Lane - Request from Cllr Robin Theobald
	4b Petition Letter to KCC
	4c Attachment 1 - Crash Map Data
	4d Attachment 2 - Existing Speed Limits
	4e Attachment 3 - Proposed Traffic Calming & Extended 30 mph Speed Limits
	4f Attachment 4 - Give Way Carriageway Restriction
	4g Attachment 5 - Petition_Redactedsmaller

	9 Parking in Pitfield Drive (junction A227), Meopham - request from KCC Cllr Bryan Sweetland



